
Meeting Minutes 
State College Borough Council 

Work Session  
November 9, 2007 

 
The State College Borough Council met in a work session on Friday, November 9, 
2007, in the State College Municipal Building, Room 304, 243 South Allen Street, 
State College, PA.  Ms. Dauler called the meeting to order at 12:07 p.m. 
 
Present:  Catherine G. Dauler, President of Council 
    Thomas E. Daubert  
    Ronald L. Filippelli 
    Elizabeth A. Goreham 
    Donald M. Hahn 
    Craig R. Humphrey 
    Jeffrey R. Kern 
 
Also present:  Thomas J. Fountaine, II, Borough Manager; Thomas S. Kurtz, 
Assistant Borough Manager for Community Services; Carl R. Hess, Planning 
Director; Amy R. Miller, Recording Secretary; Beth Johnston, Human Resource 
Director; Roger Dunlap, Assistant Borough Manager for Budget and Administration; 
Greg Koehle, Community Relations Officer; Michael Groff, Finance Director; Norma 
Crater, Accounting Supervisor; Thomas R. King, Chief of Police; Mark Whitfield, 
Public Works Directors; Herman Slaybaugh, Zoning Officer; members of the media; 
and other interested observers.     
 
Public hour.  There were no comments from the public. 
 
Open Agenda.  Don Hahn said the anti discrimination ordinance should be delayed 
until 2008, especially because the fair housing ordinance took so long to enact.  Ms. 
Goreham replied that enacting the ordinance now would be better.  Mr. Kern said he 
felt the issue was not controversial; Mr. Humphrey agreed.  Ms. Dauler said Council 
should move forward with the ordinance.   
 
Mr. Filippelli suggested postponing the reconsideration of zoning elements for the 
Heister Street area that is scheduled for December 10.  Council agreed to postpone 
the item. 
 
Ms. Dauler suggested implementing a guide to neighborhood services that would 
help the public to better determine which department would best serve them with 
specific issues.  She said most residents do not know who to call when they are in 
need of assistance for Borough services.   
 
Ms. Goreham asked if Council would receive a debriefing on the Borough/University 
Liaison meeting.  Mr. Fountaine said Mayor Welch would report on the meeting on 
November 19. 



 
National Citizen’s Survey Results.  Mr. Fountaine said Council received the 
survey results at last week’s work session and that Carl Hess and Greg Koehle 
would present an overview of the results.   
 
Mr. Koehle presented Council with an overview of the Police Department’s 
Neighborhood Crime Survey.  Mr. Koehle said there were 886 surveys mailed to 
owner-occupied residences, and neighborhoods surveyed included the Highlands, 
Holmes-Foster, College Heights East and College Heights West.  He said there was 
an overall response rate of 60 percent.  Mr. Koehle indicated that the Highlands 
neighborhood had the highest concern for nuisance activity while all the 
neighborhoods surveyed had a low concern for dangerous criminal activity.  He 
added that the Highlands neighborhood had the highest contact rate with the Police 
Department while all the neighborhoods indicated a high rating in regard to the 
quality of service provided by the Police Department.   
 
Ms. Goreham asked how distribution of the survey was determined.  Mr. Koehle said 
funding for the survey was obtained from the source investigation project and the 
Police Department’s Grant Coordinator determined which neighborhoods were most 
affected by alcohol and crimes.   
 
Mr. Hess then presented highlights from the National Citizen’s Survey.  He said that 
1200 surveys were mailed to random residents and 409 were returned which was a 
37 percent rate of return.  He added that the results were weighted to reflect the 
population characteristics.  Mr. Hess said the outcome of the survey determined that 
State College is a great place to live. 
 
Mr. Hess added that low scores were received in regards to the characteristics of the 
community relating to affordable housing, child care and health care.   He noted that 
a number of questions on the survey were presented on public safety in regard to 
violent crimes, property crimes and fire.  Mr. Hess said results showed that residents 
generally feel safe, but those numbers decrease after dark.    
 
Mr. Hess continued stating that respondents have asked about the level of trust in 
the local government and results were at or above the national norm.  He said many 
questions were asked related to pubic services which were also above the norm in 
all areas except snow removal, public parking and fire prevention education.  He 
added that the survey determined that garbage collection ranks higher than any 
other public services and the customer service of employees was ranked above the 
norm.   
 
In closing, Mr. Hess said the survey results were presented in a report done in excel.  
However, he added that other software could be used for better results.  Mr. Kern 
offered the use of the software that he currently uses which would improve the 
analysis.   
 



Ms. Goreham requested that new council members get copies of the Citizens 
Survey.   
 
Mr. Fountaine said the Borough plans to conduct the survey every other year to 
explore specific issues that need more data collection to illustrate trends. 
 
Streambuffer Ordinance.  Sebastian DeGregorio, Centre Regional Council of 
Government (COG) Regional Planner, was available to answer any questions 
Council had on the proposed Streambuffer Ordinance; Council, however, did not 
have any questions.  Council thanked COG for their hard work on the ordinance.  
Mr. Fountaine said he would forward comments from the Borough’s Planning 
Commission favoring the ordinance to Jim Steff, COG Executive Director. 
 
Report From the University Area Joint Authority (UAJA).  Robert Schmalz, State 
College Borough representative for the UAJA, provided Council with an update on 
the ongoing beneficial reuse project.  Mr. Schmalz said the dual pipe transmission 
line is now complete and connected to the Centre Hills Country Club.  This 
connection, he noted, will provide a great supply of high quality water and help to 
resolve the Susquehanna Basin Commission issue of net withdrawal of water from 
the Spring Creek Watershed.   
 
He added that Alpha Fire Company has tested the fire hydrants and they are 
delivering high power water pressures. 
 
Mr. Schmalz indicated that the Regional Act 537 Sewage Facilities plan, which was 
approved by COG and all municipalities, expands the sewer area and will play a 
major role in development over the next 5 years.  He added that at this time the 
UAJA facility capacity is adequate, but development will play an increased effect on 
the facility and collection system, which may result in higher costs down the road.    
 
Mr. Schmalz said that UAJA is pleased to welcome their fuzzy new neighbors, 
PAWS, to their neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Filippelli asked who benefits from the beneficial reuse.  Mr. Schmalz replied at 
this time only Centre Hills Country Club is making use of the project.  Mr. Filippelli 
asked if other businesses were expected to make use of the project; Mr. Schmalz 
answered that the possibility is being marketed. 
 
Mr. Kern asked if waste water runoff that goes into the water system could be 
harmful to residents.  Mr. Scmalz said the beneficial use water is free from anything 
of concern after filtration and purification.   
 
Report From Design Review Board.  Kevin Gombotz, Chair of the Design Review 
Board, provided Council with an update on the work of the Design Review Board.  
Mr. Gombotz said there have only been a few development plans.  He added that 
the Board has reviewed plans for redevelopment of the Cinema 5 Theatre on Heister 



Street to a retail space.  In addition the Board reviewed the final plans for the Fraser 
Centre.  Mr. Gombotz said the Board continues to meet twice a month and are 
continuing to update the design guide which was originally produced in 1992.  The 
Board expects to have a final draft available early in 2008. 
 
2008 Borough Operating Budget.  Mr. Fountaine presented an overview of the 
2008 operating budget, distributed copies of the complete budget to Council 
members, and acknowledged the hard work of the Borough staff, especially Norma 
Crater.  He said in preparing the budget, Council’s goals from their strategic planning 
session last year were taken into consideration.  He noted that Council’s first 
discussion of the budget was scheduled for a work session following the regular 
meeting on November 19  
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned to an executive session at 
1:55 pm to discuss personnel and real estate. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
  
__________________________________ 
Cynthia S. Hanscom 
Assistant Borough Secretary 


